# LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS

## MINUTES OF THE TOWER HAMLETS HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

#### HELD AT 5.03 P.M. ON TUESDAY, 9 JUNE 2020

#### ONLINE 'VIRTUAL' MEETING - HTTPS://TOWERHAMLETS.PUBLIC-I.TV/CORE/PORTAL/HOME

#### Present:

Councillor Rachel Blake (Chair)

Dr Sam Everington (Vice-Chair)

Councillor Danny Hassell

Councillor Sirajul Islam

Councillor Candida Ronald

Councillor Denise Jones Dr Somen Banerjee Steve Collins Selina Douglas

**Debbie Jones** 

Denise Radley

Vivian Akinremi

Vicky Clark

Chris Banks

Marcus Barnett Dr Ian Basnett

Peter Okali

Paul Gilluley Jackie Sullivan

Richard Tapp Helen Wilson

**Christabel Shawcross** 

Councillor Kahar Chowdhury

- (Deputy Mayor and Cabinet Member for Adults, Health and Wellbeing)
- (Chair of the Tower Hamlets Clinical Commissioning Group)
- (Cabinet Member for Children and Schools )
- (Statutory Deputy Mayor and Cabinet Member for Housing)
- (Cabinet Member for Resources and the Voluntary Sector)
- Older People's Champion
- (Director of Public Health)
- Executive Director of Finance
- Managing Director NHS Newham, Waltham Forest, Tower Hamlets CCG
- (Corporate Director, Children and Culture)
- (Corporate Director, Health, Adults & Community)
- (Deputy Young Mayor Lead for Health & Wellbeing)
- (Divisional Director for Growth and Economic Development)
- Chief Executive, Tower Hamlets GP Care Group CIC
- Met Police Borough Commander
- Public Health Director, Barts Health NHS Trust
- Tower Hamlets Council for Voluntary Service
- East London Foundation Trust
- Managing Director of Royal London Site, Barts Health
- London Fire Brigade
- Clarion Housing/THHF representative to HWBB
- Safeguarding Adults Board Chair LBTH
- Chair of Health & Adults Scrutiny

	Committee
Councillor Andrew Wood	<ul> <li>(Independent Member of the</li> </ul>
	Conservative Group)
Matthew Mannion	<ul> <li>(Head of Democratic Services,</li> </ul>
	Governance)
Dr Sally Hull	<ul> <li>Clinical Effectiveness Group</li> </ul>
Warwick Tomsett	<ul> <li>Joint Director, Integrated</li> </ul>
	Commissioning
Jamal Uddin	- Strategy Policy & Performance Officer
Chris Lovitt	<ul> <li>(Associate Director of Public Health)</li> </ul>
Dr Anna Livingstone	<ul> <li>(GP, Limehouse - City &amp; East London</li> </ul>
	Local medical Committee)
Carol Saunders	– Tower Hamlets Keep our NHS Public
David Knight	<ul> <li>(Senior Democratic Services Officer)</li> </ul>
Muhammed Uddin	<ul> <li>(Senior Councillor Support Officer)</li> </ul>
	•••

#### **Apologies:**

Asmat Hussain

 (Corporate Director, Governance and Monitoring Officer)

## 1. STANDING ITEMS OF BUSINESS

#### 2. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS

The Chair Councillor Rachel Blake (Deputy Mayor and Cabinet Member for Adults, Health and Wellbeing) welcomed everybody to the meeting.

#### 2.1 Minutes of the Previous Meeting and Matters Arising

That the unrestricted minutes of the Tower Hamlets Health and Well Being Board held on 13<sup>th</sup> January 2020 were confirmed as a correct record and the Chair was authorised to sign them accordingly.

#### 3. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND OTHER INTERESTS

No declarations were received.

## 4. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION

#### 4.1 Covid-19 in Tower Hamlets - summary and current priorities

The Board received a presentation providing a summary on the Covid- 19 epidemic in Tower Hamlets and the current. The main points of the discussions may be summarised as follows:

The Committee noted that:

- The Covid-19 epidemic has dominated the Councils workload and priorities since the crisis began and the lockdown was in place.
- The Mayor John Biggs wished to place on record his thanks to all the health practitioners; community activists and council officers who had been working hard on guidance for businesses on making workplaces 'Covid secure'.
- The Council are continuing to work with partners across Tower Hamlets to help tackle the spread of the virus and to make sure that residents, particularly those most vulnerable, are given all the support they need.
- Over the past few months, the communities of Tower Hamlets have come together to respond to an invisible challenge. However, it is at times of challenge that we also see the very best of the human spirit and in every corner of Tower Hamlets people have been working together from across the Boroughs diverse communities to tackle coronavirus have selflessly putting their hands up to help others;
- The local response to the pandemic has been second to none. It has been incredibly heartening to see so many volunteers, community groups, partner organizations and council staff working together.
- With regards to the development of recovery strategies we still do not know precisely what that means in terms of the new normal. Therefore, there needs to be a dialogue about what we can learn and how we can protect our community. Especially when considering the anxiety about the differential impact on groups of people across the country e.g. older people with chronic health conditions and the differential impact of Covid-19 on BAME communities.
- The Council, stakeholders and partners need to consider how they can give guidance to people across communities to help recover from this pandemic.
- It is important to understand people's circumstances e.g. their employment status; where they live; and personal health needs. Then to build a matrix of support for residents to keep them safe and to prepare to address any future recurrences.
- With regard to Safeguarding adults (i) there has been a higher than anticipated deaths of people with learning disabilities; and (ii) there is a need to look at some of the reasons for people have been reluctant to come forward for their health checks; (iii) the Black Asian Minority Ethnic communities higher levels of health need is also an issue that needs to be considered; (iv) how to shield those in this vulnerable category;
- It is recognised that there is an ongoing risk of further waves until an effective vaccine is available. Therefore, it is likely that until then a combination of current measures will continue to some extent depending on levels of Covid-19 in the population (social distancing, hygiene, test and trace, shielding); There remain important unknowns e.g. likelihood of reinfection, transmission of people with no symptoms. Hence, the challenge going forward is to work together to prevent

infection, contain outbreaks, provide assurance to residents, and enable a level of normality to return to people's lives.

- To prevent and manage any future coronavirus outbreaks that may occur in Tower Hamlets, it is important that there is effective testing and contact tracing will be critical to preventing and managing local outbreaks. Therefore, the Council and its partner agencies need to look at how they are supporting residents to get tested through the NHS Test and Trace programme e.g. Some of the more vulnerable and at-risk residents will continue to need support if self-isolating if there is any local outbreak, so engagement with these groups is vital.
- When lockdown restrictions start to lift, it is important that residents continue to follow government advice including keeping a safe distance from other people, practicing good hygiene and self-isolating if experiencing symptoms of coronavirus.
- The challenge now for the Council; its partners and stakeholders are to:
  - 1. Continue to work together to prevent infection,
  - 2. Contain any further outbreaks,
  - 3. Provide assurance to residents; and
  - 4. Enable a level of normality to return to people's lives

### 4.2 Covid-19 in Tower Hamlets - resident perspective (Healthwatch)

The Board received a presentation from Healthwatch providing a resident's perspective on the health and wellbeing in the COVID-19 pandemic A summary of the discussions is outlined below:

The Board noted that:

- Healthwatch was in the process of carrying out a survey online and on the phone. They have also analyzed comments received from local people via telephone and email, NHS Choices, patient opinion, and social media.
- The internet plays a crucial role in how local people cope with the pandemic. Relatively few of those Healthwatch spoke to are digitally excluded; they tend to be older, more deprived, non-White and in poorer health.
- More than half of survey respondents used the internet to stay informed about keeping themselves safe during the pandemic.
- The Government website, the NHS website, BBC News, and social media were important sources of information. While most respondents found it easy to stay informed, some did voice concerns about contradictory or unclear advice.
- Online support groups represent a useful resource for local people to organise and offer advice.

# TOWER HAMLETS HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD, 09/06/2020

- Access to food (including supermarket shopping among neighbours and support for vulnerable people struggling to afford food) is one of their main areas of concern.
- Patients hospitalised with Covid-19 reported a good standard of care. Although there were apparently reports of inpatients with other issues being discharged prematurely to free up beds for Covid-19 patients.
- Residents had found pharmacy staff to be helpful and supportive, but admin and communications problems happen, particularly in relation to repeat prescriptions and third parties picking up medicine.
- Primary care professionals, including GPs and 111 dispatchers, are not always able to answer patients' queries about Covid-19, as it is a new phenomenon and many aspects are unknown to the scientific community. This causes further worry to patients.
- Some community psychotherapy/mental health support services continue remotely via telephone while others are subject to cancellations. Patient opinion of telephone psychotherapy sessions vary. Complex patients under the care of Community Mental Health Teams can feel particularly unsupported.
- New and expecting parents are apparently experiencing disruptions to maternity and neonatal services, including some cancellations to antenatal and postnatal appointments, and delays in registering babies with a General Practitioner.
- Younger people living with a mental health issue, living alone or with housemates were more likely to experience social isolation.
- Those living with relatives other than their spouse and those experiencing financial precarity were more likely to have tense or unpleasant relations with members of their household.
- Most of the survey respondents who were in work worked from home. Some adapted without issues, while for others it was more challenging; particularly for those with childcare or adult care responsibilities and those who struggled with mental health issues.
- Affording their housing was a major concern for those experiencing loss of jobs or income; the economic downturn increased the risk of homelessness, which in turn meant higher vulnerability to Covid-19
- Consideration should be given to organizing neighbourhood-level grassroots groups to act as digital guides for the digitally excluded individuals who are shielding (including collection and donation of devices and dongles).
- People want professionals to be honest about what they do and do not know or what the science is currently able to tell us. There is the potential for the Board to take a lead on this and counteract some of the confusion coming from central government, in terms of providing clearer, better tailored information on topics such as masks and social distancing.
- Neighbourhood-level online support groups have organised efficiently to provide help for their neighbours, on an informal level. Social prescribers, providers of primary care and the Communities Driving Change programme should work with them to support the local community, making use of the networks they have created.

- Healthwatch had drafted the following recommendations:
  - 1. More proactive communication from GP Practices is needed on the best way to access GP services for different needs and groups; reassure residents that's it's ok to see a doctor including reassurance around social distancing, mask wearing and staff testing.
  - 2. Provide additional triage training to practices that need it.
  - 3. Undertake more work to investigate what some of the challenges are for patients with remote appointments, including privacy for those sharing living spaces and the impact of health literacy on how people communicate about their symptoms.
  - 4. A lot of services have been put on hold that might have serious repercussions for patients, including cancer diagnosis, pain management, IVF, bone marrow transplant patient and post-surgery check-ups. Patients need honest communication about when, how, and how gradually services will resume, as well on when and why it is safe to attend hospital appointments.
  - 5. Increase the promotion of mental health self-help apps and support, including the possibility of counselling and therapy via online chat (with text, audio, and video options)
  - 6. Maintain a strong integrated care approach for those with severe mental health, substance misuse and housing problems.
  - 7. Support residents to access therapy and bereavement counselling reflecting religious and cultural diversity, particularly in relation to BAME communities.
  - 8. Patients, family, and unpaid carers have taken on more responsibility for caring over the lockdown. With the right support and training some may want to continue, elements of this where it improves their quality of life. This should be clearly offered as a personal choice and integrated with other forms of care support.
  - 9. Access to Covid-19 testing for care worker needs to be improved.
  - 10. Consider separate times for runners and cyclists at Victoria, Mile End, and the tow paths. People who need to socially distance find it exceedingly difficult to do so with runners and are therefore not going out to exercise as much as they want or need to.
  - 11. Health and Wellbeing Board partners should consider the provision of socially distanced workspace for residents who find it difficult to work from home.
  - 12. Employers need to invest in appropriate home working equipment for those who are being asked to stay at home for longer.
  - 13. Provide information on how to manage stress related to working from home, such as dealing with video engagement overload or distractions.
  - 14. Increase access to financial, employment and housing advice and information.

## 4.3 Questions from public

The Board received and considered the following questions from the public which may be summarised as follows:

- Many residents in Tower Hamlets live in a high-rise accommodation and are concerned about social distancing. Therefore, registered providers of social housing need to put up notices in the appropriate type face and reference the need to wear face coverings to limit the spread of infections through respiratory droplets. In response it was noted that Tower Hamlets Homes have designed a revised safety poster in association with public health colleagues' arm in consultation with residents.
- How does the Board propose to respond to the development of a primary care led Covid-19 Pathways to Recovery given that the latest reports confirm that particularly those residents with a Bangladeshi background are at much higher risk of severe illness and death? Therefore, Tower Hamlets urgently needs a local culturally sensitive test and trace system in addition to any arrangements made centrally by the government. In response it was noted that the Tower Hamlets scheme is a culturally and language appropriate scheme including (i) the swabbing of the nose(ii); the antibody test and (iii) vaccination for Covid-19 as and when it becomes available. This local scheme has been developed in conjunction with the Clinical Effectiveness Group at Queen Mary's, this multidisciplinary team includes GP clinical leads, clinical facilitators, data analysts and researches.
- Regarding the transition for dental practices towards the resumption of the full range of dental provision what is being done to support them to prevent a massive backlog of essential treatment; In response It was noted that there has been national guidance around dentistry and optometry. However, regarding the issue of ensure that surgeries are accessible this question will be raised at the regional level as the commissioning of dentistry optometry does not sit with the local Clinical Commissioning Group.
- A draft report from the Independent Scientific Advisory Group for Emergencies (iSAGE) says that the government track, and trace system needs a radical overhaul because it is "not fit for purpose. Whereas in Tower Hamlets GPs have always been ahead of the game and they were thinking about contact tracing and tracking before it became a national programme
- Tower Hamlets needs to do is make sure the local programme aligns with what is coming through nationally. However, together the Board Members and Stakeholders can develop a programme for Tower Hamlets that really works for residents and addresses some of the risks of and gaps of the national programme.
- Regarding the disproportionate effect of COVID-19 on BAME communities and risk assessments for the BAME employees. It was noted that one of the key issues is that whilst evidence indicates disparities between communities. It does not adjust for those residents who have a range of medical conditions. Therefore, in terms of risk assessments employers need to identify how people's specific

vulnerabilities impact upon any risk assessment which is something that has been discussed by the Councils Corporate Leadership Team.

- It was important to make sure that we are giving sort of tailored and specific advice for residents e.g. when the national guidance for a specific cohort of people changed locally a more cautious and safe approach has been urged
- The Council health messages regarding ovid-19 has been extremely positive/accessible and it would be of benefit for a coordination of such public health messages across all the Boards Membership.

In conclusion, the Chair stated that she is grateful for all the contribution's at tonight's meeting and the work that has gone into preparing for this meeting and looked forward to working with partners and stakeholders.

#### 5. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Nil items

The meeting ended at 6.38 p.m.

Chair, Councillor Rachel Blake Tower Hamlets Health and Wellbeing Board